
REVISED 
City of Mission 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, September 17, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 
Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson 

 
If you require any accommodations (i.e. qualified interpreter, large print, reader, hearing assistance) in              
order to attend this meeting, please notify the Administrative Office at 913-676-8350 no later than 24 hours                 
prior to the beginning of the meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

● Mission Marlins Presentation of Trophies 
 
2.  ISSUANCE OF NOTES AND BONDS 
 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
NOTE:  Information on consent agenda items has been provided to the Governing Body.             
 These items are determined to be routine enough to be acted on in a single motion;                
however, this does not preclude discussion.  If a councilmember requests, an item may             
be removed from the consent agenda for further consideration and separate motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA - GENERAL 
 
3a.   Minutes of the August 20, 2014 City Council Meeting 
  
CONSENT AGENDA - Finance & Administration Committee 
 Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 9-3-14 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 9-3-14 
 
3b. Resolution Declaring Surplus Property 
3c. Ordinance Adopting STO and UPOC 
 
CONSENT AGENDA - Community Development Committee 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 9-3-14  
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 9-3-14  

 
3d. CARS Interlocal Agreement 
 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
We have included available minutes for each Community Committee in your packets.  If you              
have questions about these committees, you may bring them up under New Business. 

 
 

http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4542&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNH2fL88Cy_gAkfB1BrX92NMrRujoQ
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4542&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNH2fL88Cy_gAkfB1BrX92NMrRujoQ
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4542&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNH2fL88Cy_gAkfB1BrX92NMrRujoQ
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dpacket%26docid%3D4613&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNHb45uY9dZvrHYZr_AF7v6GIruTrw
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4613&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNH_suOwWD1B0LDJka1DnudjmRnXYw
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dpacket%26docid%3D4612&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNHSykNlW-yI4FGI3gosWZwjpKoyvQ
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4612&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNG6VuoBe2YqV6NBUbMUR5ZMr0vaaQ


 
 

Mission Convention & Visitors Bureau 
Mission Arts Council 
Mission Tree Board 

Sustainability Commission 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
5.  ACTION ITEMS 
 

Planning Commission 
Miscellaneous 

 
6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance & Administration, Amy Miller 
 Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 9-3-14 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 9-3-14 
 
6a. Council Policy on Remote Participation 
6b. Gateway CID Ordinances 
 
Community Development, Steven Lucas 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 9-3-14 
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 9-3-14 

 
6c. Brinshore TIF District - Resolution Setting Public Hearing 
 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
9.  MAYOR'S REPORT 

Appointments  
 
Municipal Judges Pro-tem 
 

● Robert G. Scott 
● David S. Bell 
● Nathan J. Owings 

 
Tree Board 

● Brian Schmid, Ward III 
● David Schwenk, Ward III 

 
10.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dpacket%26docid%3D4613&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNHb45uY9dZvrHYZr_AF7v6GIruTrw
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4613&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNH_suOwWD1B0LDJka1DnudjmRnXYw
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dpacket%26docid%3D4612&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNHSykNlW-yI4FGI3gosWZwjpKoyvQ
http://www.google.com/url?q=http%3A%2F%2Fmissionks.org%2Fdocview.aspx%3Fdoctype%3Dminute%26docid%3D4612&sa=D&sntz=1&usg=AFQjCNG6VuoBe2YqV6NBUbMUR5ZMr0vaaQ


  
City of Mission Tree Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday, August 11, 2014 
7:00 p.m. 

 
City of Mission Tree Board Meeting 
Monday, August 11, 2014 
7:00 p.m. 
Mission City Hall 
 
In attendance:  Karin Capron, Dave Haws, Jacque Gameson, Maril Crabtree, Christy 
Humerickhouse, Kathy Lockard and Laura Smith 
 
Karin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

  Approval of April 2014 minutes. 
Change the date of the April Minutes to Monday, April 14, 2014  
Include discussion on Shady the Squirrel - mascot for City of Mission Tree Board. 
Jacque Gameson moved to approve as ammended Maril Crabtree seconded -  Motion passed. 
 

  Mission’s EAB Community Preparedness & Response Plan - update 
● A copy of the plan was attached for the committee; 
● Three elements that would be included in the plan - Committee encouraged to take home the 

plan to review; 
● Trees would be evaluated by an arborist with the following rating results: 

1-3 - Poor condition - remove these trees. 
3-4 - Good condition 
5 - Very good - start injections 

● All trees at the Sylvester Powell, Jr. Community Center are in good condition and are 
scheduled to be treated.  Maril would like to get a couple more bids for the injection of the 
trees at the Community Center. 

● Street trees are owned by the City - right of way - language needs to be clarified - Laura will 
assist with clarification. 

● Need to get definition - What is a tree owned by the City as opposed to a tree that is on 
personal property - Laura will assist to let committee know what they are responsible for. 

 
● Dave Haws has an Ash Tree that has White Rot and it is being removed atg the end of the 

month. 
 

● There is an Ash Tree in Kathy Lockard’s yard that is dead and is possible EAB.  It is 
scheduled to be removed by Ryan Tree Service - date to be determined; 

 
● Jacque Gameson moved and Maril Crabtree seconded for the City of Mission to complete 

an  inventory of the Ash Tree’s  for $1675 or less and use that expense to get this under way 
to address the removal of trees and at what expense  Motion passed. 

 
● If diseased tree is mulched in less than 2 inches in diameter - it removes the EAB. 



 
 

● Jacque provided the committee with a packet of EAB information from Arbor Masters. 
 

● Laura will get the information to Emily Randel to put on the website and facebook regarding 
EAB. 

 
● Tree board line item $4100 available to spend - $2200 left in maintenance budget. 

 
  Discussion on Condition of Existing Park and Street Trees 

● $2200 left budgeted for maintenance on the trees. 
● Three trees in Broadmoor Park that need to be removed.  Because they are close to power 

lines and other trees - the City has asked to have the trees removed by a company. 
 

● Dave Haws reported that we are down 33 trees in Broadmoor Park in 8 years; 
● Need to replant trees - but where do we put them? 
● Trees have come out - but they may have been planted in another area. 
● Dave Haws requested to see a log of where trees have been planted by Public Works. 
● Laura Smith stated that the City does not have a formal request for tree planting. 
● Need to have a plan that the parks and public areas have the right tree in the right place. 
● There will be a Park Master Plan completed by the Parks & Recreation Commission that will 

also benefit what happens in the parks. 
● Scope the RFP for the parks master plan that one of the components is to scope trees and 

where to plant them. 
● Page three of the EAB response plan talks about the replacement of Ash Trees. 
● We need to have the right diversity of trees when replanting trees.  Need to look at the right 

trees in the right place. 
● September 11, 2013 - Tree Plan was approved.  

Item #4  - states “The Tree Board will create with the Public Works Supervisor and properly 
certified private contractors hired by the City, a reasonable timetable, based upon the order of 
importance, for the trimming, pruning and removal of all existing hazardous, dead, diseased 
or injured trees on City property.  Removal of dead trees will include the removal of the stump, 
refilling the hole created by the removal and replacement, in the next appropriate planting 
season, of a tree of at least 1 1/2 inch in caliber in relatively the same location.  The Tree 
Board will submit to the Governing Body a recommended timetable and order of importance 
for the annual and/or biannual trimming and pruning of all trees on City property and 
recommendations, based on the 10% Rule, for species of the mandatory replacement of 
trees.  

● The city of Mission has a tree inventory software and Danielle Murray had the information and 
was teaching Trey Whittaker this program.  Tree Board Members would like to have the 
information from this program. 

 
 Celebration Tree Program 

● Karin Capron has purchased a tree from this program in memory of her sister.  She thought 
about a Blue Spruce, but now would like to talk about a different tree. 

● 913-302-2359 - new number for Karin. 
● Karin has been through the Tree Keepers Program and would be able to teach the Public 

Works staff or Parks staff on planting a tree. 



● Work with Karin on planting her tree in the fall in memory of her sister.  
 

● Make sure that Public Works waters trees during the winter. 
 

● The Park at the corner of Broadmoor and Martway - would like to name it Celebration Park - 
possibly plant a tree in that park; 

● Mohawk Park could use a tree - Karin will look at that park - she would like to plant an 
evergreen tree. 

● Christy will take Karin one day to go around to all the parks along with Maril and Jacque to 
view all the parks.  After September 5th because Maril will be unavailable until then. 

 
Miscellaneous 

● There is only $10,000 total on the budget for 2015 for planting and maintenance. 
● $2200 budget line for removal of the trees in Broadmoor Park. 
● $4100 in tree board - $75 for Tree Inventory 
● $500 gift card from Suburban to spend on a new tree. 
● Tree Board would like to see information in sign board about trees. 
● How are trees to be removed:  Christy and Kathy work with Public  

Works to go through the parks and look at the dead trees and have them removed. 
● 56th & Barkley - Dead Tree - Dave says that is City Property. 
● Normal attrition rate of trees - was there a plan when putting trees in to Broadmoor Park? 

Neighbors around Broadmoor Park would like to see more trees as a buffer. 
● There are 6 other parks in the City and they all need to get the same attention as Broadmoor 

Park. 
● Priority today - EAB response plan,  How do we address this in Mission? 

We are going to move forward with an Ash  tree inventory. 
● Proactive or reactive removal.  To what extent do we try to save the Ash Trees? 

Get the inventory of the Ash trees - trees that are a 5 - are worth spending the money to 
salvage. 
Working with the limited budget - recommend to move forward with an EAB response plan on 
the budget with have.  Waiting on two other bids for inventory and assessment - Christy will 
make some phone calls. 

 
Other Business/Discussion 

● Dave loves Mission and appreciates the trees in Mission. 
● Committee Members need to look over the EAB response plan. 
● Cheri’s tree out front of City Hall is doing well. 
● MFAC - Jacque thanked Christy and Kathy on the new facility.  Thanks for taking care of the 

trees during construction. 
● $1,998.50 was spent in Andersen Park - tree maintenance program to help take care of the 

trees and for some of the trees in Mohawk Park also. 
● Still need to put up a plaque in Beverly Park for Jacque Gameson. Tree Board recognition. 
● Also need to get a plaque in Broadmoor Park for Elliott’s tree.  Dave Haws moved to 

purchase a plaque for Elliotts tree. Jacque Gameson seconded. Motion passed. 
● Maril Crabtree moved to purchase a plaque for Beverly Park for Jacque’s recognition on the 

Tree Board.  Dave Haws seconded.  Motion passed. 
● Need to put an article in the City of Mission Newsletter for recognizing the Beverly Park 

plaques. 



● Trees in Waterworks park - one had to be removed.  Limited space on where to plant trees. 
We will replant a tree in that park - Karin will take care of the planting. 

 
● Jacque Gameson moved that Karin will research and replant the tree that was removed in 

Waterworks Park and the expense will come out of the tree board budget.  Dave Haws 
seconded.  Motion passed.  

 
Meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm. 
  
Respectfully submitted by Kathy Lockard, Administrative Supervisor, Parks & Recreation. 
 
 



 
 

MISSION SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 
July 24, 2014 

 
The Mission Sustainability Commission met at the Sylvester Powell, Jr. Community 
Center, 6200 Martway, Thursday, July 24, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Doug Blessing, Largo Callenbach, Rafael Duran, Leslie 
Herring, Manny Trillo, Doug Gregg, Nicole Moran 
Commissioners Absent: Steve Helvey 
Staff present: Emily Randel, Rosalind Johnson 
 

Approval of June, 26, 2014 Meeting Minutes 
Doug Gregg motioned and Doug Blessing seconded. The June 26, 2014 minutes were 
approved. 
 

Review of Sustainability Commission Survey Results 
Member survey: The Commission had been asked earlier in the week to complete a 
Survey Monkey survey as preparation for the July 24 discussion. Emily Randel read the 
survey results to the group. Largo Callenbach shared that she had been unable to 
complete the survey, but would do so. Doug Blessing requested that the compiled 
survey results be saved and distributed to the group members. 
 
The group shared overall reactions to the survey results. There was an overall interest 
in more involvement with the Planning Commission. This involvement could be 
achieved through either reviewing the Planning Commission’s agendas, increased 
coordination, inviting a Planning Commissioner to Sustainability Commission meetings, 
etc. The goal is not to insert Sustainability Commission into the Planning Commission’s 
projects, but to continue on the track already started with the sustainability checklist, 
etc. 
Doug Blessing recalled that at one point, it was suggested that a Sustainability 
Commissioner would attend a meeting of the City’s other boards and commissions. 
Sustainability touches all aspects of the city. There is relevancy to each board. 
Largo Callenbach commented that currently, the Sustainability Commission members 
are viewed as “Acquaintance Advisors.” The group needs to look for appropriate 
avenues to impact decision making.  
The group discussed how the Sustainability Commission compares to the City’s other 
boards and commissions.  
 
The group discussed the recent variances to the Form Based Code that were allowed 
for the Cornerstone Commons project. The Form Based Code needs revision, and the 
Sustainability Commission should be present for those revision discussions. 

1 



 
 

MISSION SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 
July 24, 2014 

 
The Sustainability Commission’s original goal/task was the Climate Action Plan. It has 
become more well-rounded than that, with a focus on more than just one of the three 
“P’s” (Planet, People, Prosperity). 
 
The group evaluated their perceptions of what support is available from different people, 
groups, organizations. Neighborhood Services has been a great partner. The October 1 
meeting will be an opportunity to share with City Council.  
 
Nicole Moran stated that it seems there are two major opportunities for impacting future 
development, the Business Improvement Grant and the Sustainable Mission Scorecard. 
Formalizing the scorecard into the development process is a key opportunity. 
 
Leslie Herring summarized the discussion. The Sustainability Commission should focus 
on better connections to the Planning Commission, and on creating a more visible role 
in City government. A more visible role in the community is not the focus at this time. 
The group’s recent focus has been on smaller events. They are important, but not 
impactful to the level of what was described at the outset of the task force and the early 
history of the Commission. The group is interested in more meaningful projects going 
forward. 
 

Review of Comments in Comprehensive Sustainability Plan Comments 
 
Emily Randel stated that she feels that from the City staff perspective, that 
there is good opportunity to begin formalizing the scorecard process.  
 
The group discussed work on the Comprehensive Sustainability Plan. The 
group should focus on the future - streamline current activities and present that 
to the City Council, while taking advantage of project champions, existing 
relationships. The format of the presentation, and of the plan is still undecided. 
 

SECTION 260.090:     SUSTAINABILITY PLAN REVIEW 
At least once each year, the Sustainability Commission shall review or 
reconsider the comprehensive sustainability plan or any part thereof 
and may propose amendments, extension or additions to the same. 
(Ord. No. 1300 §1, 6-17-09) 

 
 
Emily suggested that the group should meet before their August meeting as a 

2 



 
 

MISSION SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 
July 24, 2014 

sub-committee. She will send a Doodle Poll to determine a meeting time. 
 
Rafael Duran mentioned that he would like to see the group get back to the Complete 
Streets/Livable Streets or similar concept that was presented to the Sustainability 
Commission by Justin Pregont. The group should find that information for consideration. 
 
Doug Gregg would like the group to consider completing a previous idea to include 
sustainable business practice information in business license renewal mailings. 
 

Roundtable/ Miscellaneous Updates 
No roundtable items were shared. 
 

Meeting Adjourned 
Nicole motioned to adjourn the meeting, Largo seconded the motion. The meeting 
adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

3 



Mission Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED 
Monday, AUGUST 18, 2014 

Sylvester Powell Jr Community Center – Party Room 
 

The City of Mission Parks & Recreation Commission met at the Sylvester Powell, Jr. 
Community Center in the Party Room on Monday, August 18, 2014 at 5:30 p.m. In attendance 
– Mark Raduziner, Mary Funk, Walt Seibert,  Brenda Crossfield.  Kathy Lockard represented 
staff.    Absent - Anne O’Leary, Jim Sloss and Christy Humerickhouse 
 
Mark called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm 
 

 Approval of June 2014 meeting minutes 
There was no meeting in July. 
Committee requested that a clock be put on the lower level of the MFAC for 2015.  
Walt Seibert moved and Brenda Crossfield seconded to approve the minutes. 
Motion Passed. 
 
 

 Mission Summer Family Picnic Review – Mark 
● Big Crowd but was not as large as in the previous year; 
● Cut back a case or two of soda and add cases of water - ran out of water first; 
● Signage for games with time and location; 
● Face painting was great; 
● Fireworks were great; 
● Counselors were great helpers - they just pitched in and helped – We hire good kids. 

 
 Summer Camp Update – Kathy 

● Our camps served a total of 292 different kids during the nine weeks with an average 
weekly attendance of 125 kids in Mission Summer Camp and 45 kis in Teen N Tween; 

● 129 of the campers took swimming lessons generating an additional $4,700 in 
revenue; 

● 85 campers took tennis lessons generating an additional $3,415 in revenue; 
● Mission Summer Camp kids went to the MFAC 24 times throughout the summer and 

TNT campers went a total of 26 times; 
● While campers were at the MFAC they spent a total of $3,685 at the concession stand; 
● Summer Camp Fees for the younger campers -  was $119 for Resident, Mission 

Business & Community Center Members and $129 for the Non Resident Rate - weekly 
- 7:30 am - 5:30 p.m.  TNT Campers paid $129 for Resident, Mission Business and 
Community Center Members and $139 for Non Resident Fee with an additional $25 
fee/week for premium field trips. 

● This year we supplemented attendance at camp in the amount of $527 for one child 
from our scholarship fund; 



● Staff is scheduled to start planning this week for next year’s camp putting emphasis on 
staff training, theme weeks, field trips and daily/weekly activities; 

● Commission Members recommend that the fee be even higher for non-residents - $30 
or $40 more – look to find out what the percentage of the resident and non-resident 
participation.  Lower fee for residents - $99 per week for residents and $140 for 
non-residents.  Babysitters normally make $ 300-$400 a week for kids and we should 
charge more – also check the competioon prices around the area. 

● Walt commented on how well the staff had control over the children when they were 
walking to the pool. 

 
Not related to the campers - because they were well supervised at the pool, but Mary 
commented that the kids in general need to be out of the lap area – kids need to be out of the 
lap lanes.  The sign board needs to be up – Monday – Friday – “Be respectful share the lap 
lanes.” 
Mark commented – there is no place for the kids to dive except in the lap lanes and they need 
to be able to dive on Tuesday,Thursday and Saturday when the lanes are not being used. 
These are NOT camp kids – these are just the regular kids who are jumping into the lap lanes 
when the lap swimmers are trying to swim.  Lifeguards are not watching and keeping this in 
tact. 
 

 MFAC Report 
● Despite the unseasonably cool summer we have had, attendance at the Aquatic 

Center has come very close to meeting our predicted expectations for the year.  
● Through the end of July the front desk had collected $31,176 of the $35,000 budget 

revenue; 
● Membership sales had collected $35,146 of the budgeted $34,000 revenue; 
● Concession stand had collected $21,215 in revenue with a budget expectation of 

$18,000; 
● We are on school schedule for the remainder of the season with the last day for 

“people” swimming scheduled for Monday, September 1st; 
● We will continue to hold our annual Pool Party for Pooches and that will be on 

Tuesday, September 2nd; 
● Play splash area – continue to leave this area open until October? 

 
Winter Activity Guide 

● The guide was NOT mailed out to residents and members this time to save money - 
patrons may pick up a copy of the guide in the Community Center and they are 
encouraged t o view the guide on-line; 

● New classes include KC SALSA Kids for 3-5 year olds and KC SALSA Kids for 6- 10 
year olds - information on page 16 of the guide; 

● Free Family Fun Nights are schedule for Friday, November 7th and Friday, December 
5th from 5:00 - 8:00 p.m. in the Community Center; 



● Commission Members would like to continue to sell popcorn and soda at these events 
to raise money for the scholarship fund; 

● Mark Raduziner and Mary Funk will work the Friday, November 7th Family Fun Night. 
 

Community Center Task Force Review and Action Plan 
● The task force is being set by the Mayor to review and evaluate the daily operations of 

the community center and evaluate the self sufficiency rate (80%) for the center that 
has been established by City Council; 

● Task Force appointment is to be made at the Wednesday, September 3rd Community 
Development Committee meeting.  

 
Master Plan Update 

● This item goes before the Community Development Committee on Wednesday, 
October 1st; 

● The goal is to have a firm under contract before the end of the year with the actual 
work being done next year; 

● Please send out the information on the RFP’s to the committee so they have a copy 
and they would like to DO SOMETHING as the Committee - be more involved – can 
they help choose the recommendation on the company from the RFP – as an advisory 
board they feel they should be in the know about the plan and the process. 

● Mary would like to think about having a memorial bench in a park – trees can die. 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
Mary is taking a course to become a Master Gardener – you need to give back 40 hours to 
the community the first year and then 30 years the next year.  She is a Rose Groomer at 
Loose Park.  There are 49 applicants and they took 30 – she was chosen as one of those.  8 
hours a day for 8 weeks.  Participants pay for the instruction material.    The course is through 
the Kansas State Extension Service.  Participants are required to do hours for the gardener 
hotline. They have a library and you look up the answer and give that to them. 
 
Mary Funk moved and Brenda Crossfield seconded to adjourn meeting at 6:44 p.m. 
Motion passed. 
 
Next meeting in September. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Kathy Lockard, Administrative Supervisor. 
 
 
 
 



 

City of Mission Item Number: 6a. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY Date: August 29, 2014 

Administration From: Glen Cole 

Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Proposed Council Policy - Remote Participation 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend that City Council approve the proposed Council Policy, 
which will allow councilmembers to remotely attend and vote in City Council meetings with 
certain restrictions. 
 
DETAILS:  Following discussion at the Council’s April 30th work session, staff has drafted a 
proposed Council Policy to allow councilmembers to remotely participate in City Council 
meetings. The policy would allow a councilmember to participate and vote in a maximum of 
two meetings (among all of the meetings listed) each calendar year due to personal illness, 
emergencies, or geographic distance. To preserve the integrity and confidentiality of 
executive sessions, these meetings are excluded from remote participation. 
 
Neighboring communities have both adopted and rejected the idea of remote participation. 
The cities of Leawood and Merriam have adopted formal policies allowing remote 
participation; the city of Lenexa has a formal policy prohibiting it. The cities of Mission Hills, 
Roeland Park, Olathe, and Overland Park all allow remote participation by custom.  
 
This item was originally presented as a discussion item at the committee’s August 6th 
meeting. During the meeting, the committee discussed the appropriateness of the two 
meeting maximum, and ask that three specific revisions be made to the policy: 
 
● The policy should only apply to City Council meetings, and not to committee meetings; 
● The policy should specify a specific time frame for notifying the City Clerk if a 

councilmember will need to participate remotely, with the understanding that 
emergencies may arise that can still be accommodated (if possible), and; 

● That Section 1.04b, concerning “technical difficulties,” incorporate more specific language. 
 
A revised copy of the proposed policy addressing these concerns is attached. Should the 
committee approve of the proposed policy, the committee should recommend it be considered 
and adopted by City Council at the council’s September 17th meeting. 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance: n/a 

Line Item Code/Description: n/a 

Available Budget: n/a 

 



CITY OF MISSION 
 CITY COUNCIL POLICY MANUAL 

________________________________________________________ 
  
POLICY NO. 129 (PROPOSED - REVISION 2) 
  
REMOTE PARTICIPATION IN CITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
_____________________________________________________________________  
  
1.01 Purpose 

The intent of this policy is to establish reasonable guidelines for councilmembers to remotely 
attend and participate in official legislative functions when they are unable to be physically 
present at a meeting. It is not the intent of this policy to require remote participation during 
every absence; rather, it is to preserve the ability of councilmembers to participate in 
important decision-making despite personal circumstances. 

1.02 Participating Remotely 

a. Councilmembers may participate remotely when their physical attendance is 
unreasonably difficult due to: 

● Personal illness, injury, or disability; 

● Emergencies, or; 

● Geographic distance  

c. Councilmembers may remotely participate in a maximum of two (2) meetings each 
calendar year. 

d. Remote participants act as full participants in public meetings. They are considered 
present and in attendance, and may cast votes. They may not participate in executive 
sessions. 

1.03 Technology 

a. Remote participants may use any method that allows them to clearly hear and be 
heard by all participants in a meeting, including the public. They may additionally elect 
to use a method that allows them to send and receive video. Such video will be visible 
to all participants in the meeting, including the public. 

b. All communications made during a public meeting remain subject to the Kansas 
Open Meetings Act. Accordingly, other forms of communication (such as typed 



messages) are prohibited unless part of an accommodation for a disability, such as a 
TTY relay service. 

1.04 Procedures 

a. Councilmembers who intend to participate remotely should notify the meeting’s 
chair and the City Clerk as early as possible to allow for any necessary preparations. 
Unless there is an emergency, councilmembers should provide at least 24 hours 
notice. 

b. At the beginning of the meeting, the City Clerk will state the names of remote 
participants when roll is called. The City Clerk will explicitly note remote participants in 
the minutes, as well as when remote participants enter or leave the meeting (for 
example, due to a technical issue). 

c. In the event that a remote participant experiences technical difficulties, the chair 
should suspend discussion until the remote participant is again present. The chair may 
remove remote participants if repeated or prolonged technical issues hinder the 
progress of the meeting. In general, delays collectively lasting longer than five (5) 
minutes are considered to hinder the progress of the meeting. 

(RECOMMENDED) BY THE FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION  
COMMITTEE ON SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

(APPROVED) BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2014 

 



 

City of Mission Item Number: 6b. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY Date: August 27, 2014 

Administration From: Laura Smith 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Revision of Gateway CID Implementation Dates 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the ordinances amending the implementation date for 
the the Gateway Community Improvement District’s (CID’s) to an effective date of 
January 1, 2016.  
 
DETAILS:  On February 20, 2013 the City Council approved Ordinance Nos. 1376 and 
1377 which established the CIDs for the Gateway Redevelopment Project.  The 
ordinance specified the districts were to take effect January 1, 2015. 
 
With the delays in project construction, the State contacted the City and asked about 
the need to adjust the start date for the districts.  In order to preserve as much flexibility 
for the project moving forward, Staff is recommending to approve ordinances which will 
defer the effective date for the two Community Improvement District’s to January 1, 
2016. 
 
The State requires notice of any change to sales tax implementation dates by the first of 
the quarter immediately preceding the quarter the sales tax is to take effect.  Meaning, 
we need to advise the State by October 1, 2014 in order to revise a January 1, 2015 
date. 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:  

Line Item Code/Description:  

Available Budget:  

 



(Published in The Legal Record on __________________, 2014) 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1376, AUTHORIZING THE 
CREATION OF THE MISSION GATEWAY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT #1 IN THE CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAKING OF CERTAIN PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS RELATING THERETO; 
APPROVING THE ESTIMATED COSTS OF SUCH PROJECT 
IMPROVEMENTS; LEVYING  A 0.5% CID SALES TAX, PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND PROVIDING FOR THE METHOD OF 
FINANCING THE SAME, INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS AND FULL FAITH AND CREDIT BONDS. 

 
  
 WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013, the City of Mission, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 1376, 
creating the Mission Gateway Community Improvement District #1 (“District”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Ordinance No. 1376 in Section 4 thereof established a date of January 1, 2015 for 
the commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District, or  such other date as shall be approved by 
ordinance of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend said Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1376 to provide that the 
commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District shall be January 1, 2016. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF MISSION, KANSAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Amendment of Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1376.  That Section 4 of Ordinance 

No. 1376 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 SECTION 4.  Imposition of Transportation District Sales Tax.  In order to provide for the 
payment of the Projects, the Governing Body of the City hereby imposes the CID Sales Tax within the 
District in an amount of 0.5% on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or rendering or 
furnishing services taxable pursuant to the provisions of the Kansas retailers’ sales tax act within the 
District with such CID Sales Tax to commence on January 1, 2016 or such other date as shall be 
approved by ordinance of the City. 
 
 SECTION 2. Ratification; No Repeal. Except as amended herein, Ordinance No. 1376 is 
hereby ratified, shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be repealed hereby. 
   

SECTION 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage by the Governing Body of the City and publication once in the official City newspaper. 



 
 

 PASSED by the Governing Body this ___ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 

CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS 
 
 
 
By:  ____    

  Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor 
[SEAL] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Martha Sumrall, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
 
________________________________ 
David K. Martin, City Attorney 



(Published in The Legal Record on __________________, 2014) 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1377, AUTHORIZING THE 
CREATION OF THE MISSION GATEWAY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT #2 IN THE CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAKING OF CERTAIN PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS RELATING THERETO; 
APPROVING THE ESTIMATED COSTS OF SUCH PROJECT 
IMPROVEMENTS; LEVYING  A 0.5% CID SALES TAX, PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND PROVIDING FOR THE METHOD OF 
FINANCING THE SAME, INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS AND FULL FAITH AND CREDIT BONDS. 

 
  
 WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013, the City of Mission, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 1377, 
creating the Mission Gateway Community Improvement District #1 (“District”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Ordinance No. 1377 in Section 4 thereof established a date of January 1, 2015 for 
the commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District, or  such other date as shall be approved by 
ordinance of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend said Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1377 to provide that the 
commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District shall be January 1, 2016. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF MISSION, KANSAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Amendment of Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1377.  That Section 4 of Ordinance 

No. 1377 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 SECTION 4.  Imposition of Transportation District Sales Tax.  In order to provide for the 
payment of the Projects, the Governing Body of the City hereby imposes the CID Sales Tax within the 
District in an amount of 0.5% on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or rendering or 
furnishing services taxable pursuant to the provisions of the Kansas retailers’ sales tax act within the 
District with such CID Sales Tax to commence on January 1, 2016 or such other date as shall be 
approved by ordinance of the City. 
 
 SECTION 2. Ratification; No Repeal. Except as amended herein, Ordinance No. 1377 is 
hereby ratified, shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be repealed hereby. 
   

SECTION 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage by the Governing Body of the City and publication once in the official City newspaper. 



 
 

 PASSED by the Governing Body this ___ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 

CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS 
 
 
 
By:  ____    

  Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor 
[SEAL] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Martha Sumrall, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
 
________________________________ 
David K. Martin, City Attorney 



 

City of Mission Item Number: 6c. 

DISCUSSION ITEM SUMMARY Date: 8/22/2014 

Community Development Department From: Martin Rivarola 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Tax Increment Financing Application - Resolution Setting a Public Hearing 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve a Resolution of the City of Mission, Kansas, establishing the date and              
time of a public hearing and providing for notice of a public hearing concerning the establishment of a                  
Redevelopment District within the City pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1770, Et.Seq., as amended, in the area               
generally bounded by Metcalf Avenue, Johnson Drive, Broadmoor Street, and Martway Street and             
described as 7080 Martway Street.  
 
DETAILS: The City Council has adopted a Purchase and Predevelopment Agreement with Brinshore             
Development. This Purchase and Predevelopment Agreement contemplates the eventual sale of           
City-Owned land at 7080 Martway Street for redevelopment into an affordable senior housing project.              
The sale of land is contingent on a number of factors including award of Low Income Housing Tax                  
Credits (LIHTC) by the Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC), approval of city incentives             
such as Tax Increment Financing (TIF) and Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRB), and approval of              
development plans.  
 
The Purchase and Predevelopment Agreement contemplates consideration of TIF by the City. In             
general, award of TIF involves a two stage process. The first stage is the establishment of a physical                  
boundary of the TIF district and the second stage is the approval of a specific project plan within that                   
boundary. Both stages have a sequence of events, notices, and public hearings prescribed by State               
Law and City TIF policy. Brinshore has now submitted application for creation of a TIF District and is                  
in the process of preparing a Development Plan which would meet the City’s Zoning Regulations and                
contain the findings required by City TIF policy for consideration by the City Council.  
 
According to State Statutes, once an application is filed, a public hearing SHALL be set by Council.                 
Setting the public hearing does not bind the City to approval of any incentives. Staff and the City’s                  
Financial Consulting team will begin review of submitted materials once the date and time of the public                 
hearing has been set and notice of award of LIHTC is received. We anticipate word on the LIHTC                  
application later by mid-May 2015.  
 
The City Council has also expressed a desire to see the building existing on site demolished as soon                  
as possible. Legal counsel recommends the establishment of a TIF Redevelopment District prior to              
demolition of the building. Assuming Council approval and establishment of the proposed “Brinshore”             
TIF redevelopment district, by November 2014, this would clear the way for potential building              
demolition by January 2015.  
 
The attached resolution officially designates the date of Public Hearing for consideration of the findings               
of fact as necessary for November 19th, 2014. The TIF application form is attached.  

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance: K.S.A. 121770 et seq.; City Council Policy 106 

Line Item Code/Description: N/A 

Available Budget: N/A  
 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS, PROVIDING         
FOR NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING CONCERNING THE        
ESTABLISHMENT OF A REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT WITHIN      
THE CITY PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 121770, ET SEQ., AS AMENDED  

WHEREAS, pursuant to K.S.A. 121770 et seq., as amended (the “Act”), the city of            
Mission, Kansas (the “City”), is authorized to assist in the development and redevelopment of              
eligible areas within the City in order to promote, stimulate and develop the general and               
economic welfare of the State of Kansas and its communities; and  

WHEREAS, the City hereby finds and determines it desirable to encourage the            
development and redevelopment of certain real property generally located in the western half of              
the block bounded by Metcalf Avenue, Johnson Drive, Broadmoor Street, and Martway Street             
within the City and to consider the establishment of a redevelopment district at such location (the                
“Redevelopment District”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the City must adopt a resolution stating that the City is                
considering the establishment of the Redevelopment District and include in such resolution            
notice that a public hearing will be held to consider the establishment of said Redevelopment               
District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE           
CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Notice is hereby given that a public hearing to consider the establishment by the              
City of the Redevelopment District shall be held at the Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson St,                
Mission, Kansas, on November 19, 2014, beginning at 7:00 p.m. 

2. The proposed boundaries of the Redevelopment District are set forth in Exhibit A            
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. A map depicting the boundaries of the              
proposed Redevelopment District is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

3. A description of the proposed district plan for the Redevelopment District and the             
general description of the proposed buildings, facilities and improvements to be constructed or             
improved are attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference. 

4. A description and map of the proposed Redevelopment District are available for            
public inspection prior to the public hearing during regular office hours in the Office of the City                 
Clerk, at Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson St, Mission, Kansas. 

5. At the public hearing, the Governing Body of the City will consider findings             
necessary for the establishment of the proposed Redevelopment District. 

 



 

6. The City Clerk shall give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the              
provisions of the Act. 

THIS RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mission, Kansas, this 
17th day of September of 2014. 

CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS 

By:  
Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

By:  
       Martha Sumrall, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

By:  
David Martin, City Attorney 

  

 



 

EXHIBIT A 

PROPOSED BOUNDARIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

A TRACT OF LAND THAT IS PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW/4) OF 
SECTION EIGHT (8),  TOWNSHIP TWELVE (12) SOUTH, RANGE TWENTY-FIVE 
(25) EAST, OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, JOHNSON COUNTY, STATE OF 
KANSAS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
KF251208-2003, 8-12-25 BG 402.18' S & 41.19' E NW COR SW1/4 E 135.17' NE 110.66' 
NW 135.17' SW 111.13' .35 AC & .03 AC BG 402.18' S & 41.19' E NW COR SW1/4 TO 
BEG E135' S 10' W 137.19' NE 10.21' TO BG & EX .0058 AC .3742 AC M/L MIC 254A; 
 
KF251208-2021, 8-12-25 BG NW CR SW1/4 E 376.67' S 47.21' SELY 150' SW 180.44' TO 
TRUE POB SW 41.24' & 7.89' W 135.17' NE ALG CUR 75.23' SE 81.88' NE 40.91' SE 
48.41' TO POB .1749 AC M/L MIC 254R; 
 
KF251208-2048, 8-12-25 BEG 402.18' S & 176.36FT E NW COR SW 1/4 NE 110.66' 7.89' 
& 41.24' S 163' W 77.81'N 34' TO BEG .219 ACS M/L MIC 254 12;  
 
KF251208-2066, 8-12-25 BG 590' E 285' S & 235' W NW CR SW1/4 NW 98.89' TO PT 
255.16' E W/L 1/4 S 163.44' E 107.17' N 21.60' W 10' N 130' TO BG .358 ACS M/L MIC 
254 24; 
 
KF251208-2020, 8-12-25 BEG 412.18' S & 80' E NW COR NW 1/4 SW 1/4 E 96.36' X S 
187.91' .42 AC M/L MIC-0254Q; 
 
CONTAINING 67,820.76 SQUARE FEET OR 1.56 ACRES. 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 



 

EXHIBIT B 

MAP OF PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT C 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED DISTRICT PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

District Plan for Redevelopment District 

 

The District shall consist of only one redevelopment project area.  The buildings, facilities, and 
improvements to be constructed or improved within the Redevelopment District may be 
described in a general manner as consisting of some or all of the following uses, without 
limitation:  retail, office, residential, hotel, bank, restaurant, and any other facilities or 
improvements associated with or incidental to such uses, as well as trails, parks, green space, and 
landscaped areas, water features and detention facilities, parking lots and facilities, off-street 
parking, streets and traffic signals, and other public and private infrastructure, and other items 
allowable under K.S.A. 12-1770 et seq. 

 

 

 















EXHIBIT A



BRINSHORE PREVIOUS DEVELOPMENT EXPERIENCE 
Founded in 1994, Brinshore Development, LLC is a private firm specializing in the development of affordable and mixed-
income housing.  David Brint and Richard Sciortino, Brinshore’s principals, each gained a decade worth of real estate 
development experience in affordable housing prior to co-founding Brinshore Development. Their expertise in all aspects 
of real estate development, helped to formulate a business plan that includes project conception through construction 
completion, ownership, and asset management.  

To date, Brinshore has completed 50 tax credit funded projects (75 total), with several more under construction or 
development, comprised of over 4,300 apartments and homes valued at more than $1 Billion. Brinshore is one of the 
nation’s largest and most successful housing development firms in the affordable housing market. Their professional staff 
possesses a wealth of experience in using complex funding mechanisms to make its rental units affordable to families 
across the income spectrum.  Brinshore has built a diverse portfolio, including developments targeted at families with low 
to moderate incomes, senior communities, and a mix of market rate units. Brinshore has also developed more than 275 
for-sale homes as well as more than 80,000 square feet of retail space.

Brinshore Development’s headquarters is located in Northbrook, Illinois. Brinshore has a second office in Kansas City, 
MO at 208 W. 19th Street Kansas City, MO  64108, which opened in late January 2014. 

Brinshore’s developments are located in cities across the country, including Indianapolis and Lafayette, Indiana; 
Milwaukee, WI; Ft. Madison, Iowa; Kalamazoo, Michigan; Omaha, Nebraska, and the following cities in Illinois: Aurora, 
Bloomington, Canton, Champaign, Chicago, Galesburg, Highland Park, Joliet, Lincoln, Matoon, Melrose Park, Naperville, 
Rock Island, Rockford, and Urbana.  Brinshore will also be growing its presence in Kansas and Missouri with the opening 
of its new office.  

Brinshore’s projects include rehabilitation, new construction, and historic renovation. Brinshore has experience in 
affordable and market rate residential family and senior rental as well as residential for sale, and retail/commercial rental. 
Brinshore also has expertise in developing affordable artist housing and permanent supportive housing.  

Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) Funded Projects 
Brinshore prides itself on its success in financing mixed income affordable rental housing using layered financing, 
including low income housing tax credits.  Since its first project in 1994, Brinshore’s has been one of the most 
consistently successful developers in obtaining tax credit reservations from IHDA in Illinois, WHEDA in Wisconsin, 
IHCDA in Indiana, IFA in Iowa, MSHDA in Michigan, and the City of Chicago, Illinois receiving tax credits and closing 
on 50 projects.  To enhance affordability for its residents, Brinshore has used more than 25 different subsidy programs 
in its developments, and is always prepared to learn the rules for new sources of finance.  Brinshore leverages these 
scarce dollars with private funds to create needed affordable housing in mixed income settings and to catalyze 
neighborhood investment.  

RECENT AWARDS 
- Affordable Housing Finance Readers’ Choice Awards, Best Urban Project - Affordable Housing Finance 

magazine - Park Douglas, Chicago, IL (2013) 

- Chicago Landmark Award for Preservation Excellence – City of Chicago - Hairpin Lofts and Arts Center, 
Chicago, IL (2013) 

- Award for Architectural Excellence in Community Design, Second Place- Richard H. Driehaus Foundation - 
Park Douglas, Chicago, IL (2012) 

- Best Urban Multifamily Development - State of Indiana Governor’s Award for Excellence in Affordable 
Housing - Chatham Square, Lafayette, IN (2012)  

- Illinois Affordable Housing Award – Illinois Housing Development Authority - A Safe Place II, Zion, IL (2012) 
Good Neighbor Award: Mixed-Use Development - Chicago Association of Realtors  



- Hairpin Lofts and Arts Center, Chicago, IL (2012) - Merit Award Winner Rehab Construction  - Chicago 
Building Congress - Hairpin Lofts and Arts Center, Chicago, IL  (2012) 

- Residential Construction Project of the Year - Construction Industry Service Corporation - Park Douglas, 
Chicago, IL (2011) 

- Jack Kemp Workforce Housing Models of Excellence Award – 2010 Urban Land Institute Terwilliger Center 
for Workforce Housing - Hyacinth Place Townhomes, Highland Park, IL (2010) 

- Good Neighbor Award: - Chicago Association of Realtors - Hyacinth Place Townhomes, Highland Park, IL 
(2010) 

- Best Urban Multifamily Development - State of Indiana Governor’s Award for Excellence in Affordable 
Housing -  Red Maple Grove, Indianapolis, IN (2008)  

- Development of the Year Award: 2008 - Lake County Stormwater Management Commission - Hyacinth 
Place Townhomes, Highland Park, IL (2008) 

- Historic Preservation Award for Outstanding Rehabilitation - Richard H. Driehaus Foundation - Sala Flats, 
Rock Island, IL (2006) 

- Mixed-Income Project of the Year - HanleyWood Multi Family Executive  - Westhaven Park Apartments, 
Chicago, IL (2005)     

- Outstanding For-Profit Neighborhood Real Estate Project Award - Chicago Neighborhood Development 
Awards - Westhaven Park Apartments, Chicago, IL (2005) 

GREEN DESIGN 

- Hyacinth Place Townhomes - LEED for Homes: Gold Certified 
- Hairpin Lofts – LEED Gold Certified; Enterprise Green Communities Certified 
- Park Douglas – LEED Gold Certified Management Office; Energy Star Certified 
- Chatham Square – LEED Silver Certified; Energy Star Certified 
- Westhaven Park IIB – EnergyStar Certified 
- Westhaven Park IIC - EnergyStar Certified 
- Hansberry Square - EnergyStar Certified 
- Savory Square - EnergyStar Certified 
- Coleman Place - EnergyStar Certified 
- Ashland Place - Enterprise Green Communities Certified 
- Emerson Square - Enterprise Green Communities Designed (not yet certified) 
- Buffett Place - Enterprise Green Communities Designed (not yet certified) 
- Plowfield Square - Enterprise Green Communities Designed (not yet certified) 



EXHIBIT B



5/30/13 Print AIMS Map - Portrait

https://ims.jocogov.org/IMSPrint/prnportrait.aspx 1/2

Johnson Co AIMS Map

0 30 60ft ©2013 Johnson Co. AIMS - aims.jocogov.org



5/30/13 Print AIMS Map - Portrait

https://ims.jocogov.org/IMSPrint/prnportrait.aspx 2/2

LEGEND

AIMS Imagery: Current Imagery (2012)

Index (10ft)

10ft Contour Obscured

Intermediate (2ft)

2ft Contour Obscured

Parcel Line

Lot Line Original Lot Line

 Disclaimer: No person shall sell, give, reproduce, or receive for the purpose of selling or offering for sale, any portion of the data provided herein.
Johnson County makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and accurate information possible. Johnson County assumes no liability whatsoever associated
with the use or misuse of such data, and disclaims any representation or warranty as to the accuracy and currency of the data.     5/30/2013



70
80

 M
A

R
T

W
A

Y

51
0 

av
en

ei
da

 c
es

ar
 e

 c
ha

ve
z 

 k
an

sa
s 

ci
ty

  m
is

so
ur

i  
64

10
8 

 p
 8

16
 4

74
 3

83
8 

 f 
81

6 
47

4 
08

36
  w

w
w

.e
ld

or
ad

oa
rc

hi
te

ct
s.

co
m

S
U

R
V

E
Y

0"
4'

8'
16

'
32

'



EXHIBIT C



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

G
R

O
S

S
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

O
O

T
A

G
E

31
,0

85
 S

F

2 
   

U
N

IT
S

 F
U

LL
Y

 A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

 P
E

R
 U

F
A

S
1 

   
U

N
IT

 V
IS

U
A

L 
/ H

E
A

R
IN

G
 IM

P
A

IR
E

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

LE
29

  U
N

IT
S

 A
D

A
P

T
A

B
LE

 P
E

R
 F

A
IR

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 A
C

T
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E

S

32
  U

N
IT

S
 T

O
T

A
L

39
   

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
T

A
LL

S
 

A
05

0
S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

01
S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?
0"

10
'

20
'

40
'

5'



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

O
F

F
IC

E
15

0 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

LO
U

N
G

E
55

0 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

14
7'

-0
"

20
'-0

"

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D
90

0 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

23
'-0

"

19
0'

-0
"

55'-0"

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

18
8 

N
E

T
S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

P
A

T
IO

60
 N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

02

A
30

0

02

A
30

0

01

A
30

0

01

A
30

0

A
R

T
 G

A
L

L
E

R
Y

 W
A

L
L

A
R

T
 G

A
L

L
E

R
Y

 W
A

L
L

A
R

T
 G

A
L

L
E

R
Y

 W
A

L
L

A
10

0
F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S

01
F

IR
S

T
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?
0"

2'
4'

8'
16

'



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

14
7'

-0
"

55'-0"

G
U

T
T

E
R

 A
N

D
 D

O
W

N
S

P
O

U
T

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

18
8 

N
E

T
S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 C

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
73

1 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
03

/A
45

0
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0 

(S
IM

.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

02

A
30

0

02

A
30

0

01

A
30

0

01

A
30

0

R
O

O
F

 D
E

C
K

27
7 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

A
10

1
F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S

01
S

E
C

O
N

D
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?
0"

2'
4'

8'
16

'



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

14
7'

-0
"

55'-0"

02

A
30

0

02

A
30

0

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

18
8 

N
E

T
S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 C

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
73

1 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
03

/A
45

0
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0 

(S
IM

.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

A
10

2
F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S

01
T

H
IR

D
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?
0"

2'
4'

8'
16

'



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

A
10

3
F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S

01
F

O
U

R
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?
0"

2'
4'

8'
16

'

14
7'

-0
"

55'-0"

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

18
8 

N
E

T
S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 C

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
73

1 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
03

/A
45

0
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0 

(S
IM

.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0 
(S

IM
.)

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 -
 T

W
O

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
98

2 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
02

/A
45

0
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 -

 O
N

E
-B

E
D

R
O

O
M

62
9 

N
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T
R

E
: 

01
/A

45
0

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 A

 -
 O

N
E

-B
E

D
R

O
O

M
62

9 
N

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

R
E

: 
01

/A
45

0

02

A
30

0

02

A
30

0



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

A
10

4
F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S

01
R

O
O

F
 P

L
A

N
R

E
: 

?
?

/A
?

?
?

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'

S
LO

P
E

S
LO

P
E

S
LO

P
E

S
LO

P
E

S
LO

P
E

S
LO

P
E

S
LO

P
E

G
U

T
T

E
R

 A
N

D
 D

O
W

N
S

P
O

U
T

02

A
30

0

02

A
30

0

01

A
30

0

01

A
30

0

G
U

T
T

E
R

 A
N

D
 D

O
W

N
S

P
O

U
T



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 0
'-0

"

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 1
1'

-0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 2
2'

-0
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 3
3'

-0
"

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 0
'-0

"

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 1
1'

-0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 2
2'

-0
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 3
3'

-0
"

A
20

0
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 E

L
E

V
A

T
O

N
S

01
N

O
R

T
H

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?

02
S

O
U

T
H

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

R
E

: 
?

?
/A

?
?

?

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

A
20

1
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 E

L
E

V
A

T
O

N
S

02
E

A
S

T
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
R

E
: 

?
?

/A
?

?
?

01
W

E
S

T
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
R

E
: 

?
?

/A
?

?
?

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 0
'-0

"

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 1
1'

-0
"

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 0
'-0

"

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 1
1'

-0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 2
2'

-0
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 3
3'

-0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 2
2'

-0
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 3
3'

-0
"



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 0
'-0

"

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 1
1'

-0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 2
2'

-0
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 3
3'

-0
"

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 0
'-0

"

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

E
L:

 1
1'

-0
"

A
30

0
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

01
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 L

O
O

K
IN

G
 E

A
S

T
R

E
: 

?
?

/A
?

?
?

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'

02
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 L

O
O

K
IN

G
 E

A
S

T
R

E
: 

?
?

/A
?

?
?

0"
2'

4'
8'

16
'



H
E

R
A

LD
 C

O
R

N
E

R
70

80
 M

A
R

T
W

A
Y

, 
M

IS
S

IO
N

, K
S

 6
62

02

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
13

33
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

: S
S

L 
/ L

F
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

: J
S

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
: 

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

IS
S

U
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
:

5
1
0
 
a
v
e
n
i
d
a
 
c
e
s
a
r
 
e
 
c
h
a
v
e
z
 
 
k
a
n
s
a
s
 
c
i
t
y
 
 
m

i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
 
6
4
1
0
8
 
 
p
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
3
8
3
8
 
 
f
 
8
1
6
 
4
7
4
 
0
8
3
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
e
l
d
o
r
a
d
o
a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
s
.
c
o
m

D
A

T
E

:

LI
H

T
C

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

02
.0

3.
14

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
S

:

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
A

-X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

N
A

M
E

LI
VI

N
G

 R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

K
IT

C
H

EN

B
A

TH
R

O
O

M

M
E

C
H

.
C

L
O

S
E

T

C
LO

SE
T

W
.H

.

LI
VI

N
G

 R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

K
IT

C
H

EN

B
A

TH
R

O
O

M

M
E

C
H

.
C

L
O

S
E

T

C
LO

SE
T

W
.H

.

LI
VI

N
G

 R
O

O
M

K
IT

C
H

EN

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #
1

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #
2

B
A

TH
 #

1

B
A

TH
 #

2

C
LO

SE
T 

#1

C
LO

SE
T 

#2

M
E

C
H

.
C

L
O

S
E

T

W
.H

.

11'-2" 2'-6" 9'-10"

3'-0 3/8" 4'-2"

2'
-0

"

C L

2'
-6

"

C L

1'
-6

"

3"

3'
-7

"

6'
-0

"
4'

-1
0"

16
'-6

"

20
'-5

 3
/4

"
5'

-0
"

18'-0"

D
W

2'
-6

"
3'

-0
"

2'-0"4'-0"

38
'-6

"

2'-7"

24'-0"

9'-10" 2'-6" 10'-8"

3'-1 1/8"4'-3 7/8"

1'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'
-0

"

C L
C L

3"
2'-7"

4'
-1

0"

28
'-7

"

2'-0" 4'-0"

6'-0"18'-0"

10
'-1

0"
5'

-0
"

2'-6"

6'
-0

"
4'

-1
0"

1'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'
-0

"

C L
C L

9'-10" 10'-8"

2'-7"

2'
-6

"
3'

-0
"

D
W

2'
-6

"
3'

-0
"

2'-0"

D
W

21
'-6

"
6'

-0
"

9'-5" 2'-6" 13'-7"

1'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'
-0

"

C L
C L

12
'-0

"
5'

-0
"

2'-6"

6"

3'-0"

3"

4'
-6

"
3'

-7
"

3'
-7

"

1'
-6

"

12
'-0

"

12
'-0

"

1'
-6

"

1'
-6

"

1'
-6

"

2'
-0

"

1'
-6

"

1'
-2

"

6'-0"

6'-0"

10
'-6

"
10

'-1
0"

A
45

0
E

N
L

A
R

G
E

D
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S

01
E

N
L

A
R

G
E

D
 U

N
IT

 P
L

A
N

 -
 U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 A
 

R
E

: 
01

/A
10

0,
 A

10
1,

 A
10

2,
 A

10
3

0"
1'

2'
4'

8'
02

E
N

L
A

R
G

E
D

 U
N

IT
 P

L
A

N
 -

 U
N

IT
 T

Y
P

E
 B

 
R

E
: 

01
/A

10
0,

 A
10

1,
 A

10
2,

 A
10

3
0"

1'
2'

4'
8'

03
E

N
L

A
R

G
E

D
 U

N
IT

 P
L

A
N

 -
 U

N
IT

 T
Y

P
E

 C
R

E
: 

01
/A

10
0,

 A
10

1,
 A

10
2,

 A
10

3
0"

1'
2'

4'
8'



EXHIBIT D









EXHIBIT E



He
ra

ld
Co

rn
er

M
is

si
on

,K
S

Br
in

sh
or

e
TI

F
An

al
ys

is
us

in
g

20
13

Ta
x

Va
lu

es
an

d
M

ill
Ra

te
s

22
Ap

r
14

20
13

M
ill

Ra
te

s
M

ill
Ra

te
TI

F
El

ig
ib

le
Ci

ty
of

M
iss

io
n

11
.4

13
11

.4
13

St
at

e
of

Ka
ns

as
1.

50
0

Jo
hn

so
n

Co
un

t y
17

.7
45

17
.7

45
Jo

hn
so

n
Co

un
ty

Li
br

ar
y

3.
15

5
3.

15
5

Jo
hn

so
n

Co
un

ty
Pa

rk
&

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
2.

34
7

2.
34

7
Jo

hn
so

n
Co

un
ty

Co
m

m
un

ity
Co

lle
g e

9.
95

1
9.

95
1

U
.S

.D
.N

o.
51

2
(S

ha
w

ne
e

M
iss

io
n)

55
.6

11
35

.6
11

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

Fi
re

Di
st

ric
tN

o.
2

11
.0

04
11

.0
04

To
ta

lM
ill

Ra
te

/
TI

F
El

ig
ib

le
Ra

te
11

2.
72

6
91

.2
26

Es
t.

M
ar

ke
tV

al
ue

@
Co

m
pl

et
io

n
2,

25
0,

00
0

N
O

I@
6.

5%
Ca

pi
ta

liz
at

io
n

Ra
te

tim
es

Fu
tu

re
Re

sid
en

tia
lC

la
ss

Ra
te

11
.5

0%
Es

t.
Fi

na
lA

pp
ra

is
ed

Va
lu

e
25

8,
75

0

Cu
rr

en
tT

ax
es

0
Cu

rr
en

ta
d

va
lo

re
m

ta
xe

sa
re

$0
.

Es
tim

at
ed

An
nu

al
Ta

xe
s

Es
t.

Fi
na

lA
pp

ra
ise

d
Va

lu
e

25
8,

75
0

tim
es

To
ta

lM
ill

Ra
t e

11
2.

72
6

Es
t.

An
nu

al
Pr

op
er

ty
Ta

xe
s

29
,1

68

Es
tim

at
ed

an
nu

al
TI

F
Es

tim
at

e
Fi

na
lA

pp
ra

is
ed

Va
lu

e
25

8,
75

0
tim

es
TI

F
el

ig
ib

le
M

ill
Ra

t e
91

.2
26

Es
t.

An
nu

al
TI

F
23

,6
05

Es
t.

TI
F

to
Ta

x
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

81
%

Es
ca

la
tio

n
Ra

te
1.

02
1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20
To

ta
lT

ax
es

23
,6

05
24

,0
77

24
,5

5 8
25

,0
50

25
,5

51
26

,0
62

26
,5

83
27

,1
14

27
,6

57
28

,2
10

28
,7

74
29

,3
50

29
,9

37
30

,5
35

31
,1

46
31

,7
69

32
,4

04
33

,0
52

33
,7

13
34

,3
88

w
ith

De
bt

Se
rv

ic
e

Co
ve

ra
ge

Ra
tio

1.
15

20
,5

26
20

,9
36

21
,3

55
21

,7
82

22
,2

18
22

,6
62

23
,1

15
23

,5
78

24
,0

49
24

,5
30

25
,0

21
25

,5
21

26
,0

32
26

,5
52

27
,0

83
27

,6
25

28
,1

78
28

,7
41

29
,3

16
29

,9
02

DE
BT

SI
ZI

N
G

Di
sc

ou
nt

ed
va

lu
e

of
20

ye
ar

st
re

am
at

7 %
$2

52
,8

79
.6

9
Ro

un
de

d
$2

52
,0

00
.0

0

Ye
ar

EX
HI

BI
T



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  City of Mission, KS 
 
FROM: Herald Corner Dev, LLC 
 
RE: Conservation Area Designation – 7080 Martway Mission, KS 
 
BACKGROUND 
Brinshore Development, LLC is the managing member of Herald Corner Dev Manager, LLC, the managing member 
of Herald Corner Dev Manager, LLC.  Brinshore Development, LLC is the contract purchaser of 7080 Martway, a 
parcel of land with improvements in Mission, KS.  Brinshore Development, LLC will assign its purchase contract to 
Herald Corner Dev, LLC prior to closing on the acquisition.  

 
KANSAS STATUTE 
According to KSA 12-1771a(d), a "Conservation area" means any improved area comprising 15% or less of the land 
area within the corporate limits of a city in which 50% or more of the structures in the area have an age of 35 years 
or more, which area is not yet blighted, but may become a blighted area due to the existence of a combination of two 
or more of the following factors: 

      (1)   Dilapidation, obsolescence or deterioration of the structures; 
      (2)   illegal use of individual structures; 
      (3)   the presence of structures below minimum code standards; 
      (4)   building abandonment; 
      (5)   excessive vacancies; 
      (6)   overcrowding of structures and community facilities; or 
      (7)   inadequate utilities and infrastructure. 

 
SATISFACTION OF THRESHOLDS REQUIREMENTS TO BE DEEMED A CONSERVATION AREA 
7080 Martway contains a structure that was built in 1930 is located in an area that is not yet blighted but may 
become a blighted area duke to the existence of the following factors:  
 

(1) Dilapidation, obsolescence or deterioration of the structures.  7080 Martway contains a two 
story building that is in poor condition.  The building has deteriorated to a point where demolition 
is the only viable option for future use.  Attached in EXHIBIT A show the exterior and interior 
photographs of the structure. 

 
(5) Excessive vacancies.  The building has been vacant since 2006. Because the City of Mission is 

the owner and it is tax exempt, the property has not been paying ad valorem property taxes and 
the building has sat idle and vacant for eight years. 

 
For the reasons listed above that satisfy KSA 12-1771, the applicant, Herald Corner Dev, LLC, is requesting that the 
area be deemed a conservation area.  
 
EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A - Interior and Exterior Photographs 



7080 MARTWAY HOUSING PRESENTATION 11.25.13

Existing Context

1

1 6

2 5

3 4

2

3

4

5

6



Photo 1 – View looking north at south side of the subject property.  The subject 
property is currently unoccupied and was previously occupied by Neff Printing. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 2 – View looking northeast at the west side of the subject property building.  



Photo 3 – View looking west at the north side of the subject property building.  The 
asphalt-paved ground surface was cracked and in poor condition.  

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 4 – View looking east at the west side of the subject property building.  



Photo 5 – View looking south at the entrance from Martway Street to the subject 
property.  A Panera Bread Restaurant is located adjacent to the south of the subject 

property, followed by Martway Street and a Culvers Restaurant.    

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 6 – View looking north at the retaining wall located along the western 
boundary of the subject property.  Metcalf Avenue is located adjacent to the west. 



Photo 7 – View looking northeast at the north adjacent strip shopping center from 
the northwest corner of the subject property. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 8 – View looking east from the east boundary of the subject property at the 
adjacent dry cleaning property (Pride Cleaners). 



Photo 9 – View looking east at the northwest corner of the building, identified in site 
records as a loading rack area.  The asphalt-paved ground surface was rain 

covered.  

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 10 – View looking north at the pole-mounted transformers located along the 
north central boundary of the property.  A solid waste dumpster, the vacant unit of a 
strip shopping center, and a separate mexican Restaurant are located adjacent and 

to the north of the subject property. 



Photo 11 – View looking southwest at the loading dock area located to the east of 
the subject property building. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 12 – View of one of the former office areas observed in the subject property 
building.  Extensive vandalism has occurred in the building since occupancy 

ceased by Neff Printing in 2006. 



AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 13 – Additional view of an office in the subject property building. 

Photo 14 – View of a basement area in the central portion of the subject property 
building.  Significant staining was observed on the ground surface. 



Photo 15 – Additional view of the significantly stained floor and floor drain in the 
basement in the central portion of the subject property building. 

Photo 16 – View of hazardous materials placard posted in the area formerly used 
as the main press room, constructed in 1991.  

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 



Photo 17 – View looking west at the interior of the former press operations area on 
the northern portion of the subject property building.  Significant staining was 

observed along the seams in the concrete floor in this room.  The floor appeared in 
poor condition. 

Photo 18 – Additional view looking at the former press operations room.  Significant 
staining was observed on the ground surface and the flooring was in poor condition 

with cracking observed. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 



Photo 19 – View of sump located in the northeast corner of the subject property 
building (former main press room).  Minor staining was observed in this area. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 20 – View of one of two drains observed in the area identified as formerly 
used as a hazardous wasted storage area in Building 3.  The floor appeared to be 

painted and significant staining was observed in the area of the floor drain. 



Photo 21 – View of a second floor drain observed in Building 3.  The area beneath 
the drain cover appeared to be significantly stained. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 22 – View of the placard observed in the area identified as a former 
hazardous waste storage area (Building 3).  The placard identifies naphthalene and 

ethylene as hazardous recovered wastes located in the storage area.  



Photo 23 – View looking west at the area identified as the former hazardous 
wasted storage area.  Significant staining was observed in this portion of the 
basement. The ground surface was in poor condition with significant cracking 

observed. 

AAI Environmental 
Corporation 

3030 River Road 
Ashland City, TN 37015 

Photo 24 – Additional view looking east at the significant staining observed in the 
hazardous waste storage area. The ground surface was in poor condition. 


	CC Agenda 9-17-14 - Google Docs
	Action Item - Remote Attendance - Google Docs
	Council Policy 139 Remote Attendance proposed (rev 2) - Google Docs
	AI_Revision of Gateway CID Implementation Date - Google Docs
	Ordinance Amending Ord 1376 (1)
	Ordinance Amending Ord 1377 (2)
	AI - Brinshore Resolution TIF Public Hearing fall 2014 - Google Docs
	TIF Resolution Brinshore Public Hearing Fall 2014 - Google Docs
	TIF APPLICATION WITH EXHIBITS 081914 - low res (1)
	Conservation Area Memo with Exhibits 043014 (1)



